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SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

April 30, 2009

CALL TO ORDER

The members of the San Jos6 Elections Commission convened at 5:32 p.m..
in Room W-262 of City Hall, 200 E. Santa Clara Street, San Jos6, CA 95113.

PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS: Cosgrove, Louie, Shepard, Smith, and de Funiak

ABSENT: COMMISSIONER: None

STAFF PRESENT: Senior Deputy City Attorney Lisa Herrick
City Clerk Lee Price
Deputy City Clerk Michelle Radcliffe
Evaluator Mike Moye
Evaulator Joan Cassman

II HEARING ON COMPLAINT

Hearing on the Independent Evaulator’s Report and Recommendations on
a complaint filed on December 8, 2008 alleging that Tom McEnery, John
McEnery IV and Urban Markets, LLC violated San Jos~ Municipal Code
ethics regulations

Documents Filed: 1) Report from Hanson Bridgett LLP dated April 24,
2009 regarding the Complaint filed by John Doe alleging that Tom
McEnery, John McEnery IV and Urban Markets, LLC violated San Jos~
Municipal Code ethics regulations; 2) Response of John Doe to April 24,
2009 Memorandum of Hanson Bridget LLP regarding Complaint filed
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againstMcEnery/Urban Markets; 3) Correspondence from Kenneth J.
Machado, Jr. dated April 29, 2009 regarding the Complaint filed on
December 8, 2009/Hanson Bridgett Memorandum; 4) Correspondence
from Eric Sahn, President of the San Jose Downtown Association, dated
April 30, 2009 regarding the hearing on the Independent Evaluator’s
Report and Recommendations; 5) Correspondence from Santa Clara
County Supervisor Dave Cortese dated April 30, 2009; and 6)Written
statement by Carl Guardino, President and CEO of Silicon Valley
Leadership Group; and 6) Reporter’s Transcript of Hearing dated April 30,
2009. Reported by Noelia Espinola, CSR, License Number 8060,
Advantage Reporting Services, No. 23886)

Evaluator Mike Moye presented an oral report and responded to questions
by the Commission. Testimony was heard from Ken Machado, Jr.
Commission deliberations and public comments followed. (See Reporter’s
Transcript Pages 3 through 53)

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Shepard, seconded Commissioner
Louie, and unanimously passed, the Commission dismissed all charges
against the Respondents Tom McEnery, John McEnery IV, and Urban
Markets, LLC. (4-0-1)

Action: Each commissioner certify that he/she reviewed the entire record
and evidence in this case and based his/her decision on the review. Each
commissioner so certified.

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Shepard, seconded by
Commissioner Louie, and unanimously passed, the Commission
authorized the City Attorney to prepare a resolution of the findings made
and authorized the Chair to sign it.

III DISCUSSION ITEMS

Continued discussion on the City’s campaign finance regulations relating
to (1) contribution limits generally; (2) inflation adjustments on contribution
limits; (3) limits on contributions to independent expenditure committees;
(4) segregation of contributions to independent expenditure committees;
and (5) disclosure of contributions to independent expenditure
committees.

This item was deferred to May 13, 2009.
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IV

V

VI

MEETING SCHEDULE AND AGENDA ITEMS

The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for May 13, 2009 at 5:30 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT

There were none.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 6:47 p.m.

FRED DE FUNIAK, CHAIR

ATTEST:

LEE PRICE, MMC
CITY CLERK and SECRETARY TO THE COMMISSION
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APPEARANCES

San Jose Elections
Commission:

FRED de FUNIAK, Chair
ROBERT SHEPARD
LEON LOUIE
ERICA COSGROVE

The Reporter: ADVANTAGE REPORTING SERVICES
BY:    NOELIA ESPINOLA,

CSR #8060
1083 Lincoln Avenue
San Jose, CA 95125
(408) 920-0222
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P R O C E E D I N G S:

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Good morning, ladies and

gentlemen. We’re going to call the meeting to order.

We only have one item on the agenda, as you’re aware.

We’ll start with a little bit of

housekeeping. Eirst, while I don’t like to do this, I

think it’s probably necessary. Rules of conduct.

In general, civil discourse will be the order

of the evening. In particular questions, answers,

comments, will be directed only to the Commission. And

we would ask that you wait to be recognized before you

speak. Okay.

We found out I need to address this remark to

my fellow commissioners. Yesterday we got information

from both complainant and respondent, and in one of

those, if you ~-- I"m sure you noticed, ~we, the

Commission, are named in a lawsuit. That’s nothing to

be particularly alarmed about. We donlt have any --

any liability issue basically. But I want to see if

everybody is okay with it. If there’s a problem, the~

I’d like to address it right now.

One of the things I intend to do, just so you~

know, would be to ask that our next regularly scheduled

meetings in May, that we have a closed session, which

we can do under the Brown Act if it concerns

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09      ~3
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litigation.

questions

suing me.

And we can get -- if you have any

or concerns atthis point.

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Not unless my wife is

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: That would be another

issue. Anyone else?

All right. Okay. Also, complainants,

respondents, witnesses, anyone giving testimony will be

sworn in. So I’d ask you to be prepared for that. And

after you are sworn in, before you begin either

answering or making your statement, please, for the

record, give us your name, your address and your

occupation. And I beli~eve a business address is

acceptable for your address if you wish to do that.

My first question is for Mr. McManis, my

first formal question, I think. And so I need to swear

you in, if you don’t mind. So I’ll ask you if you

promise to tell the truth,+ the whole truth and nothing

but the truth at this proceeding.

MR. McMANIS: Well, I’m not going to take an

oath. I’m a lawyer, not a witness. So I respectfully.

decline to be sworn in.

MR. MACHAD0    Mr. Chairman, if I may, as a

procedural matter. My ~understanding, according to your

own rules, G-14, I’ll refer to that. That the’
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complaining party in this matter is to be treated as

any other witness.

So it’s our understanding, unless Mr. McManis

intends to be sworn in and treated as a witness, then

he’s not entitled to testify in this case.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I understand that. And

I would ask that you wait to be recognized, because I

have a suggestion. The fact is that if you take that

¯ stance, then you. may not be able to address the

Commission.

MR. McMANIS: Well, that would be clear error

on the part of the Commission to take that position.

And there’s of course a record here which some court

will examine some day, Commissioner de Funiak.

But the fact of the matter is I represent the

complainant. I’m here-on his behalf. I’m entitled to

address the commission as his counsel. I’m asking

permission to do so, although I don’t think I need to

ask that permission. If you decide that I’m not

entitled to address the Commission, then we’ll leave.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: The question is: Do you

intend to produce your John Doe client tonight, yes or

no?

MR. McMANIS: The answer to that question is

no.

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09 5
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CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you.

MR. McMANIS: Now may I ask respectfully, am

I going to be permitted to address this commission as

laWyer?

If I am, I will wait my turn until you

recognize me. If I’m not going to be permitted to

address this Commission as a lawyer, then we’ll leave.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: That would be your

choice.

MR. McMANIS:

the Commission, please.

MS. HERRICK:

discuss that?

CHAIRMAN deFUNIAK~

interesting dilemma, I suppose.

May I ask to have a ruling from

Does the Commission want to

Yes. Commission,

We may have questions

for Mr. McManis, but Mr. McManis wants to decline to be

sworn. Although he thinks everyone else should be

sworn, as he stated in his rather lengthy reply in

addition, to his complaint yesterday.

How do yQu feel? Do you have questions for

Mr. McManis that you need to ask?

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: I might have, but

personally I don’t care if he’s sworn in or not.

That’s your call as far as. a legal point. I defer to

you on that. .I prefer to hear everybody who is

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/,09 6
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interested speak. But, again, you’d have to tell me

the rule on the -- this issue about being sworn in

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Well, for the time being

I’m going to proceed. There’s a distinct possibility

that if you decide you have to leave, that might be --

that might happen.

MR. McMANIS: Well, I’m not making any

decision. I just asked a simple question, whether I

would be permitted to address the Commission as a

lawyer in the usual fashion.

I’ve never been administered an oath in any

court in this state. I don’t plan to take an oath

tonight. And if you’re telling me that the only way to

address the Commission is as a sworn witness, I’m not

interested in that. I’d like to know if that’s your

position or not.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: That’s my position, yes.

MR. McMANIS. All right. Then we!ll leave.

I think that’s an unlawful decision on your part, and I

think it’s mnfortunate. But I think it’s pretty clear

where this is all headed in any event. Thank you very

much.

(Mr. McManis leaves the meeting.)

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Getting to the Hanson

Bridgett report, in Attachment A -- pardon me.

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09 7
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Attachment B and C in Hanson Bridgett’s report, you

will notice some initials. And I’m sure if you’ve seen

it, you will have figured out who the initials are.

But for the record, I would like to make sure that we

all understand ~who is who.

T.M. is Tom McEnery. J.M. is Joh~n McEnery,

the fourth. M.M. is Martin Menne. B.S. is Barry

Swenson. S.B. is Sarah Brouilette. I hope I said that

correctly. And her initials appear on pages 18, 19 and

20, not in Attachments B and C. And then H.M. is Harry

Mavrogenes, who is the executive director. So we have

that for the record.

Do we have Council Member Oliverio~here?

MS. LEE: I d.on’t expect Councilmember

Oliverio.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

question then for Mr. ~Moye~.

We don’t. I have a

It refers to the report we

got from Mr. McManis yesterday. And even [hough he has

chosen to leave, I think we need to address the issue

itself.

For example, in the very front page, the very

first p~ge, quoting from it "The evaluator conducted an

investigation primarily of what appeared to be

informal, unsworn interviews of respondent and various

city officials, including the Mayor and city

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09 8
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councilmembers, and heads of the redevelopment agency."

And he expounds on that for several pages.

Since the issue was raised, Mr. Moye, I just

¯ wanted to put the question to you of: Do you feel

comfortable with the investigation that you conducted,

the report that you made, and do you think that there

is anything else that needs to be determined?

MR. MOYE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The answer

to that is no. We feel that we were able to address

the things that needed to be addressed in the

investigation. And just by way of explanation, the

investigation conducts -- you know, I don’t think I

would characterize the interviews as informal.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I wasn’t suggesting I

agreed. I was just reading.what the report says.

MR. MOYE: Just ¯to clarify. The

investigation -- you know, the interviews that we

conducted are not t,aken under oath. And there’s a

couple of reasons for that.

One, I don’t believe~ that we actually have

the authority to administer an oath in the course of

conducting those interviews. My experience as an

investigator is that there are certain things which are

conducive to accomplishing the investigative role and

some which aren’t. And sometimes seeking things like

SAN-JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09 9

Services, LLC



1

2

3

4

7

Ii

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2o

21

22

23

24

25

having a court reporter there, things like that, you

know, may interfere with the ability to actually gather

evidence. And there always isa point at which, if

there’s a need to have sworn testimony, that can be

done in the course and. the context of the hearing

actually conducted. So the interviews that we

conducted, again, were not taken under oath.

We do not typically ask for written

statements from the interviewees unless they have some

written documentation, that they want to provide to us.

In this particular investigat.ion, we did

request with respect to most of the interviewees, prior

to conducting the interview, tha~ they gather or

assemble documentation which might be useful to us in

terms of conducting an official investigation. So that

might have been calendars, notes of meetings, e-mail

communications, that sort of thing. In the course of

the interviews, if they had those documents, we either

reviewed them or obtained copies from them, and then

use that information as part of the final of the

report.

There was a note in Mr. McManis’ submission

which referred to some e-mail communications. And

want to make clear that in -- with respect to the

information that we requested, whether it be from the

SAN-JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09          I0
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city officials that we talked to or whether it was from

the respondents, we got everything that we asked for

that we felt that we had needed.

The City did assemble some e-mail

communications. Based upon the information we had~ we

did not feei that there was going to be any additional

useful information that we would obtain in the course

of going through those particular e-mail messages. But

they were available to us if we needed them to complete

the report.

We also received quite a few e-mail messages

or e-mail communications of the respondents in the

course of the interview with them. And there were some

that I specifically requested from them, and they did

provide those to us.

And then in our interviews with the staff,

primarily the Redevelopment Agency staff, we got a

substantial number of e-mails and calendar entries and

calendar notes of meetings, which also assisted in

recreating sort of the factual scenario that we used

for the basis of the investigation.

So -- I mean, there is always more that you

might co.nsider getting. But when we got to the point

where we had assembled enough-to come to some

conclusions with respect to the allegations of the

SAN -JOSE-ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09                    ii
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complaint, we felt that we had adequate information to

make recommendations to you as to the how the matter

should be disposed of.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: And so in response, I

will also say that I’ve been on the Commission for, I

think, six years now. And I’ve been through lots of

interviews and read lots of reports that Hanson

Bridgett has condudted.

First of all, it appears pretty certain to me

t.hat this investigation was conducted as all others

have been.

And secondly, just so you’re aware, I want to

cQmpliment Mr. Moye and Ms. Cassman and anybody else

who worked on this. This was -- or is a somewhat

lengthy investigation. We’ve had piles of information

given to us. You managed to take all of that and put

it in a form that is ~readable and makes sense, and

that’s always a big help. So I want to just, from my

standpoint, offer my thanks to you.

Any other questions at-this point for

Mr. Moye or Ms. Cassman on the initial report?

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Is he going to

summarize that?

CHAIRMAN de FUNIkK: Oh, yeah, we’re not done

with it.

SAN ¯JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09                    12
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COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: I just wanted to

follow up on your question, Mr. Chair, for a question

to Mr. Moye.

Did you draw any kind of --~well, I suppose

did the councilmember who refused to -- or decline to

participate in the investigation provide a reason that

you felt kind of excused his participation, or did you

maybe draw any negative inference from the refusa! to

participate in the investigation? I just wondered what

the context is of that.

MR. MOYE: Yes. At the Outset we sent a

letter, and~it was essentially the same request for an

interview to all the councilmembers or the city

officials who they first appeared identified in the

complaint. Counsel Member-Oliverio actually contacted

my office and spoke to my assistant and indicated that

he did not wish to be interviewed. I called him back

and left a message that I would like to talk to him

about it.

When I was actually at City Hall to conduct

an interview, I saw him walking in the back door of his

office and I had an opportunity to speak with him. He

indicated at that time that he did not wish to be

interviewed because of the fact that the complaint in

the matter was anonymous, and so participating in the

SAN-JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09 13
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investigation he felt was inappropriate.

You know, we got to the point where -- and at

that point we just continued on with. the rest of what

we had because there was a fair amount to do. With the

understanding that we might get to some point where we

would have to make a decision as .to whether or not that

would be essential to come to some conclusion with

regard to something which was important or whether that

would not be essential.

I think that it’s important, you know, quite

frankly to -- the matters set forth here, but the

specific instance is that related to the allegation of

the complaint, the information t~at we have from the

respondents, did not appear that that wouldchange any

of the recommendations that we would have made.

There is potentially the other question,

whether there were additional interactions with the

councilmember that he may have recalled that the

responden~ may not have recalled that may not have been

recorded in some other documentation. We can’t say for

certain, you know, what that issue -- or how many

instances there might have been with respect to that

particular piece.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: For everyone’s

SAI~ -JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09 14
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information, had Council Member Oliverio appeared

tonight, I intended to put the questions to him or have

Mr. Moye do so. But it’s also my understanding that

probably -- you tell me if I’.m going to paraphrase this

correctly, if you would. That his testimony would

not -- while important, would not necessarily have been

critical.

What it has to do with is Mr. McManis has

suggested that Urban Markets Limited did not register~

as lobbyists in an appropriate -- in a timely manner

Mr. Moye disputed that saying that they -- Urban

Markets had not passed the ten-hour threshold of --

that would cause them to have to register as lobbyists.~

They registered on May 29th, 2008, I think.

MR. MOYE: That’s correct.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: And did so at the time

that it was appropriate, according to the ten-hour

threshold. Is that a fair statement, Mr. Machado?

MR. MACHADO: Yes, it is.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you.

Consequently, had we put the question to

him -- I think the idea from Mr. Moye was to -- he

talked to both Tom McEnery and John McEnery about a

walk-through meeting that they had. They responded,

it’s my understanding, but perhaps did not have -- have

SAN-JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09       15
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a~ything calendared or have anything that would show

the length of time.

I think Mr. Moye wanted -- they talked to

him. They gave an ’answer, as I understand. But

Mr. Moye wanted to try to verify that. Even if that

had been verified, it probably would not have pushed

this over the ten-hour mark, and that’s one of the key

points. So even~if he answered it, it probably would

not have made a difference.

Is that a fair enough statement?

MR. MOYE: That’s essentially correct, yes.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. I think I need to

back up just for a second before we continue. More of

a housekeeping thing, perhaps, or proced~ral~

One of the issues involved is with a gift of

a Sharks ticket to Council Member Liccardo. We’ll deal

wit~ part of that here tonight as it affects Urban

Limited and the McEnerys.

But as it may affect Mr. Liccardo, he would

be a different respondent and, therefore, that would be

taken up at a different time. Is that also correct?

MS. HERRICK: Mr. Chair, I don’t think a

complaint has been filed against Council Member

Liccardo.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: As long as that stays

SAI~ -JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09                    16
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the case, it’s amoot point.

At this point, I was intending to try to get

comments from both sides, butthat’s not going to be

possible.

But, Mr. Machado, do you care to address the

" Commissi0n, you and/or Mr. McEnery or anyone else? And

if so, I do need to swear you in.

MR. MACHADO: Fine. Mr. Chair, I’ll take a

an oath.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Do you promise to tell

the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

MR. MACHADO:    I do.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay.

M̄R. MACHADO: Eirst of all, we’re pleased

finally to be here. It’s been a five-month ordeal, as

you know, since -- almost five months since the filing

of this complaint.

Present, as you’ve also seen, is my client

Tom McEnery, to my left, John McEnerY, and I believe

Sarah McEnery -- Sarah Brouilette is back here~ who are

the three main parties mentioned in the complaint. All

of who are certainly willing to answer any questions

that you have presented here tonight, and I’m sure are

willing to testify under oath,

We’re not -- we’re not surprised by the
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client.

attack?

filing.

results of the evaluator’s findings exonerating my

clients from any wrongdoing or intentional

misrepresentation. And we’re very pieased that finally

the Commission is able to take a look at this

complaint, which has beeR out there in the general

public, for five.months. And you are now able to see

that -- the complaint for what it was, which is a very

politically motivated personal attack against my

Why is it a politidal motivated personal

You have to look at the surroundings of the

First of all, the immediate-- the immediate

ma±lings of copies of the complaint to public

officials, community leaders, to the general public.

And even Mr. McEnery’s own neighborhood got copies of

this document. The disclosure -- the unlawful

disclosure, I might add, by a member of the City

Council of the contents of the complaint, which were --

which was a direct violation .of the Very rules that she

helped establish. Right in her rules, that these

complaints or any information contained in the

complaint -- not just the complaint itself, any

information cannot be disclosed. Ms. Campos disclosed

those £acts the very next day after it was filed, less

than 24 hours.
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The use of the confidential complaint to

attempt to derail a project and to defame the name of

my client. Looking at all of those circumstances, I

don’t think you can call this anything else but a

political motivated personal attack.

You recall we came to this Commission a few

months ago and asked for the commibsioners to review

the whole issue of anonymity and ~whether or not there

was a filing -- a finding in good cause for the

anonymity. This is precisely the reason we were

there -- we were here at that point. We wanted to nip

this thing in the bud, and we wanted the Commission to

make a determination, which we thought it was your

right and we still ~hink it’s your right Under th.e

circumstances~ to have .stopped this complaint from going

any further.

Unfortunately, that didn’t happen. And

because of that, the city, this commission, city

manager, city officials, all have spent a great deal of

time, effort, and money to get to this point.

An interesting point, your own --the

resolutionof.which I referred to before is 72547,

which I’m sure you’re all aware. It sets forth the

regulations for this commission. Your own regulations

say the hearing on this is supposed to be done within
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two weeks from the filing of the complaint. If that

had been done, we would have been done with this matter

before Christmas. There’s no -- I’m not blaming

anybody. Mr. Moye could not have done a better, job.

But there’s no possible way -- given the magnitude of

this complaint, .which you’re all aware of, three

supplements, which I don’t think the complaining party

even had the right to make to begin with, there’s no

way it could have been done in two weeks. Impossible.

Now, what we have at the end here is a

complaint that has been basically gutted of all of its

.substance. The only finding against my client is that

they may have inadvertently left off a few e-mails, a

fax and some meetings from their quarterly reports, and

that their interpretation of what actually needed to

get reported, which is a big issue, which Mr. Moye and

I spoke about it quite a bit, was different from the

evaluator. We had a difference of an opinion. It was

a reasonable difference. He disagreed with our

interpretation of certain things.. He agreed with

others. But it was a reasonable interpretation, and

Mr. Moye noted that in his report.

That’s all we’re left with. There’s no

evidence of any intentional wrongdoing. No evidence of

any fraudulent or misleading disclosures. No evidence~
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of anything, except as Mr. Moye pointed out, that there

was a .good faith effort on behalf of my client to

comply with the ordinance.

As to the specific serious charges in the

complaint, they allege that my clients failed to

properly and timely register as !obbyists. The

recommendation there was to dismiss that allegation.

The rec -- they charged that my clients failed to pay

lobby fees, that was dismissed. That my client should

have registered as a lobbyist in 2007, that was

dismissed. That my client filed false disclosure

reports, that was dismissed. That my client failed to

report contingent compensation, that was dismissed.

That my clients’ quarterly reports did not provide

adequate detail of contacts with the city officials and

therefore violated the code. That was dismissed.

I’m sure you’ve all seen the Mercury headline

today, in the editorial, "Anonymous Ethics Complaint

Abused System." It was an-abuse. I think you know

that.

My client is justifiably upset with this

abuse. And I personally, as a taxpayer of the city of

San Jose, I’m upset too. But if I was sitting on your

side of the table, I would really be mad. This is not

why you’re volunteering your time to sit on this
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commission. You volunteer as a service to the

community, to help with a fair and local government.

Not to be manipulated for political vendettas and

personal attacks on former mayors or former enemies.

The anonymozs attacker here doesn’t have the

courage to come forward " .And I doubt anybody in this

room, including Mr. McManis, if he was still here,

really believes that he or she has any fear of

retribution in this case. The only fear is that the

public and this commission womld be able to ascertain

their reason -- the true reason behind the filing of

this complaint.

One other quote from the Mercury News article

this morning. This says -- the Mercury said, "This

case served as a blueprint for sleaze campaigning." I

think those are pretty powerful words. And I think we

should put an end to that tonight.

We really hope that two things happen here

tonight. .Two things {hat are accomplished. One that

the complaint against my client is dismissed in its

entirety.

And two, that you ask yourselves a couple of

questions: One, how did thi~ abuse happen? And two,

what can we do to prevent it from happening again?

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I1m going to address
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that particular part of it right now. And before I do,

I will tell you that I agree with just about everything

you have said. There’s really no doubt in my mind that

thee Commission was used.

But we have heard -- concerning the anonymity

issue, we have heard several concerns from the public.

We have heard from former elections commission members,

a couple of whom are here again tonight. San Jose

Mercury has written a couple of articles on this,

including the editorial today. And just before this

meeting started, I was handed letters from Eric Sahn,

who is the San Jose Downtown Association, and Dave

Cortese, of course who everyone knows. Both of those

expressing a concern about this issue.

Essentially we had our own rules used against

us. Essentially because we -- when they were made, I

don’t think anybody foresaw this sort of activity. Now

we know it’s possibie. To that end, the Commission

about six weeks ago formed a subcommittee, two of our

commissioners. Since we were bound by the Brown Act,

we can’t have more than two in the forum. " But we do a

lot of work by subcommittees. And these two

commissioners have been and will be looking at this

particular issue and. will be making recommendations

back to the Commission.
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The Commission will then be making

recommendations to the City Council. Because believe,

me, we don’t want to have this sort of thing happen

ever again. So we have started to do that, and I want

people to be aware of that. Okay.

I don’t have a whole lot of.questions for

respondents: So I do have a couple more for Mr. Moye.

But Commissioners, any questions for anyone here?

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: No.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Ms. Cosgrove.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: No.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. Let’s get back to

what Mr. Machado wound up saying. He would like to see

everything dispensed with, but I need to cover a couple

of issues.

In your Attachment A, he referencedthat, in

the Hanson Bridgett report, we have item 6, 7 and 8,

basically the allegation is failure to report. And

that says, "Sustained in part."

And then we have item 12, failure to report

activity expense, which was a ticket, and that’s

sustained.

-Help me out a ~little bit, if you would, on

sustained in part as opposed to sustained.

MR. MOYE: Yes, the complaint in the
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supplements, you know, allege -- and I forget off the

top of my head the specific.number of interactions

between the respondents and city officials that

constituted contacts under the ordinance that should

have been disclosed on the lobbyist disclosure report.

And We determined that several of those alleged missed

reports were not, in fact, contacts or that there was

no obligation to report them.

However, we found that there were some of

them .that they were correct, and we. also found others

that were not included as part of their complaint or

the supplements that should have been included. So we

could not say that the report -- for example, the

second quarter of 2008, that all of the alleged miss

reports in there that there was evidence that that had

occurred, but there were some that were missed from

that report.

So the -- the entire allegation wasn’t

sustained, as opposed to the allegation 12, where the

one allegation was that the entry to the Sharks arena

had not been properly disclosed, the evidence did

indicate that was sustainable.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: Sorry. I guess I

have a follow-up, question on that.
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CHAIRMAN de-FUNIAK: Yes-.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: On item 12. I guess

when you say it was sustained,, in another part of the

report it says -- it says that with somewhat less

certainty. It says that there’s evidence that perhaps

the respondent wasn’t even aware of the free entry. So

I was wondering, is it not a hundred percent certain?

I’m not quoting from the right section right now, but

there is something in your report, I thought, that

says --

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: There is.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: There was some

evidence to indicate that Mr. HcEnery may not have even

been aware of the free entry at that .time. So --

MR. MOYE: Yes. And there’s, you know,

probably two things that went into that.. One, you

know, the -- the entry to the arena was reported on the

councilmember’s Form-700 a.s being -- you know, benefit

received from the respondent.

And the respondent -- you know, essentially

the facts indicated that he was part of a group that

had gained entry along with the respondent. And so

from that standpoint, you know, it seemed that the

evidence supported the fact that there was a benefit

that -- you know, it ignored to the councilmember, you
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know, coming from the respondent.

You know, the question of whether or no£ --

you know, the furtherquestion is whether the

respondents -- there was no specific activity, i.e.,

handing over a ticket, you know, or a specific invite

to the councilmember from the respondent with respect

to that particular activity. So arguably you might

conclude that the absence of that specific knowledge

and that specific circumstance might undercut the

determination that there was in fact an activity as

it’s well defined.

But it was our conclusion that the

circumstances constituted a gift as defined under the

code; and so, therefore, that would sustain the

allegation that it had not been properly disclosed.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: Okay. Thanks. That

is helpful to hearing the reasoning behind that.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. Any other

questions?

I think that probably~ Commission Members,

we’re at the point where we can make a decision on this

issue. So I’m going to point you to, again,

resolution 17547.

First thing we need to determine is: Were

there any violations? Just yes or no. If we determine
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that the answer to that is no, then’we don’t go any

further. If we determine that it’s yes, then we decide

what, if anything, our options are and what we do. So

everybody understand that?

Okay. So how about a brief discussion on

whether or not there were any violations.

COMMISSIONER SH~EPARD: I guess the comment I

would have is, even if you accept the fact tha~t there

were¯ three violate -- technica! violations on failure

to disclose a meeting and potentially one technical

violation on the ticket issue, my view would be, you

can’t just have someone throw a hundred things on the

wall and hope they’ll stick. And then if you get four

technical things~that may be technically incorrect.

The question then becomes on.e of intent. And

I think throughout~this report everything, including

this four letter~ question here seemed to take you down

the road that if there was a violation, it certainly

wasn’t the intent, and that the intent was to adhere to

the rules and regulations about reporting information.

As a matter of fact, I would think it would

be almost a disservice to vote that there is a

violation, because I can just visualize what the

headline on the newspaper would be the next day -- not

that thatshould be an issue for us -- that would say
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Ex-Mayor guilty of four violations. I think that would

be a distortion, because it wasn’t -- it wouldn’t

really talk to the point that if you look at the whole

body of work associated with the allegations, that

there’s basically nothing to them, including the four

that were, quote, technical violations. So I would

tend to respond, to dismiss the entire thing.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

differently~ I see one no.

COMMISSIONER LOUIE:

Anybody feel any

Mr. Louie.

I feel exactly.the same.

I would -- I think, we shouldmake a motion.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. Before we get

there, I’ve just been handed a note. Apparently Carl

Guardino is here. Mr. Guardino has asked to address

the Commission. IS that correct, Mr. Guardino?

MR. GUARDINO: Mr. Chair, I am here. But I

also learned a long time ago, if it looks that the deal

is being closed, don’t slow down progress.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you, Mr. Guardino.

MR. GUARDINO: I do have a written statement

that I would be happy to give to your staff.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: That’s fine. Okay.

Hearing no dissension, @ommissioner Shepard,

would you like to take that thought and put it into the

form of a motion.
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COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: I would like to make a

motion that we dismiss all of the charges or -- yeah, I

guessthe charges that were part of the allegation.

second?

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

COMMISSIONER LOUIE:

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

Okay. Do we have a

I’ll second.

Okay    Move to second.

Any further discussion on this? All in favor.

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Aye.

COMMISSIONER LOUIE: Aye.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE:Aye.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

Any opposed?

(No response.)

CHARIMAN de FUNIAK:

are dispensed with.

gentlemen.

Aye .

.All of the violations

We’re not done quite yet, ladies and

MR. McENERY: Mr. Chairman, respectfully,

neither am I, if I might be allowed to speak at the

appropriate time.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

second.

Yes. Hang    on    one

MR. McENERY: No problem.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I’m going to give you
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the opportunity.

For the sake of the Commission, item J3, if

the Commission decides that these is sufficient

evidence to establish that no violation has occurred,

the Commission shall publicly announce this fact.

Technical question: Did we not just announce

this fact or do we need to do anythihg else?

MS. HERRICK: I think thatyou could issue a

stazement if you wanted.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. A written

szatement?

MS. HERRICK: Right. I don’t think it’s

necessarily clear in the resolution, but I think that a

written stazement would be consistent with what this

says.                                                                                                ’

CHAIRMA~ de FUNIAK: Okay. So what I would

ask, then, with the Commission’s approval, allow me to

work with Lisa Herrick to put together a letter that

will be sent to Mr. McEnery, et al., stating what we

have~ d0ne here tonight. That’s Okay with the

Commission?

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Yes.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: So that will -- that

will be --

COMMISSIONER LOUIE: Are you going to include
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the note about it being anonymous and how it came

about?

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: That’s a different

matter, although we put in what we think we need to. I

think the primary thing here with our decision tonight

is that no violations occurred. And so we want to --

we want to make sure we state that.

MR. GUARDIN0: Mr. Chairman, I didn’t want to

interrupn the motion, but nhat was along my point. So

if it’s appropriate, I just didn’t want to interrupt

when you had a motion and second on the table.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: So if would you like to

address the Commission, go ahead. I don’t think

there’s any need ~o swear anybody in at this point.

MR. GUARDINO: And I’d happy to be sworn in

if you’d like. Whatever your process is.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I think that part of it

is done. So g.o right ahead.

MR..GUARDINO: Thank you, sir, and thank you

for all of your service to our city and our valley.

My name is Carl Guardino, and I’m president

and CEO of the Silicon Valley Leadership Group. I’m

here this evening as a private citizen, who is a San

Jose employer, to express my deep concern about the

anonymous nature of these attacks against former San
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Jose Mayor Tom McEnery and the expenditure of taxpayer

dollars from the citizens and employers of San Jose.

I’m one of the scores of people who received

packets of material from "Anonymous." I personally

received the same packet three times, with the postage

alone at about $4 a packet. Other people in my small

office also received these packets.

My point ±s simple, Anonymous is not some

poor private citizen trying to right a wrong or bring

justice to an injustice. Anonymous is not a

whistle-blower who needs to be protected. Anonymous

has very deep pockets and is willing to hire

high-priced legal counsel and conduct a multi-layered

public outreach conduct to drag down the integrity of

someone else, and in this case someone else who truly

does not deserve it.

It is this type of slash and trash tactic

that hurts our community, and it is being done in t~he

worst possible way, anonymously.

My request to you is. simple: If it’s

allowed, reveal to the public, reveal to the taxpayers

of San Jose, residents and employerS, who is Anonymous.

This investigation is costing us, as taxpayers, our

hard earned dollars and your time. We have a right to

know who is behind this waste of our money.
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And I appreciate your time and consideration.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. Thank you.    I’m

also going to -- let me follow up with what you just

said, Mr. Guardino. I actually h~d intended to say a

lot~more about the issue, but the person to whom those

would be directed is not here.

But you will also notice in the Hanson

Bridgett report that this issue is in part addressed,

although Mr. Moye will tell you that h±s take on it is

not quite the same as the Commission’s because we had

different responsibilities.

But in there Mr. Moye made sure to point out

that one of the manila envelopes that was sent out was

returned apparently to City Hall, and someone had

written "San Jose City Hall" on the manila envelope as

though it had been mailed from City Hall. I’m not

happy with that. I’m quite sure that a lot of people

on the staff here are nothappy with that. That--

that, quite frankly, is dirty pool, as far as I’m

concerned. That’s -- that’s an attempt not only to

hide what you’re doing, but to try to shift the blame

to somebody else. I have a problem with that. But I

think I’ll be careful about going any further.

Again, just rest assured that we.will be

looking into that, and because of that, we’re going to
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open this up to public comment. And I’m quite sure the

subcommittee would be happy to hear any suggestions or

comments that you might have on how we can fix this

issue.

Mr. Signorino, you have two minutes.

MS. HERRICK: I’m sorry to interrupt. Before

you move into public comment, I just want to make sure

that we follow all the requirements and resolution that

each commission member participates in the decision,

certify on the record that he or she personally heard

or read the testimony, either in person or by listening

to a tape, and reviewed the entire evidence in the

record.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you. I affirm.

Chair de Funiak, I affirm that I did so.

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: I did so, too.

COMMISSIONER LOUIE: Yes, I did read the

pac.ket.

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE: I did, too.

MS. HERRICK: And you might want to direct

the attorney’s office to prepare a resolution that’s

consistent with your resolution as well.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Of course we want to do

that.

MS. HERRICK: Okay.
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CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you.

MS. HERRICK: Separate from the written

statement.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Yes,-I understand.

MS. HERRICK: Sorry.

MS. PRICE: By motion, please.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Do we need a motion?

MS. PRICE: Yes, please..

MS. HERRICK: Of the resolution.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Someone wants to make a

motion would be -- you want to restate that, please.

MS. HERRIC.K: That the Commission direct the

attorney’s office to prepare a resolution memorializing.

your decision. And you might want to also give some

-authority to the Chair uo sign the resolution as well.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD:

what she said.

COMMISSIONER LOUIE:

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

So we have a motion --

Motion to do exactly

Second.

Moved and second.

MS. PRICE:

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD:

COMMISSIONER LOUIE:

COMMISSIONER COSGROVE:

Who was the second?

All in favor.

Aye.

Aye.

Aye.
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Any opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

unanimously.

minutes.

Aye .

So that carries

MS. HERRICK: That’s mood.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you.

All right. Mr. Signorlno, you have two

MR. SIGNORINO: Thank you. The reason I came

down here this evening, I’ve been paying attention to

this through this news media, and I see again today the

word "Anonymous" used there.

Ever since I’ve been a little boy, taught in

grammar school by the nuns that when you are brought

before a court of law, you have a right to see who your

accusers are. And this process, realizing -- of

course, I don’t think this is a court of law, or comes

under [hat privy, but nonetheless, I think that the

philosophy of the law andthe teaching of our country

is that you have a right to know who your accusers are.

I -- I don’t think that this Commission in

the future should ever accept an anonymous accusation

against ~anyone. Hege you have Tom McEnery, former

mayor of the City of San Jose get up before the City
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council, I was there, and he tells the Ci~ty Council,

I’m used to this. My family is used to this kind of

accusation. And I’ll tell you this right now, I don’t

think any family should ever have to get used to any

kind of accusation like this.

The man -- whoever it is, man or woman; has a

right to defend themselves and see who their accusers

are, whether they’re political vendetta,, whatever that

may be. And I think that this situation should be

drawn out as an example never to be forgotten that this

should never happen again when a citizen .of theUnited

States, a resident of San Jose, can be brought before a

board, has to hire an attorney, to defend what? Some

accusation. And you yourself see now that these

accusations were unfounded.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you. Thank you.

Mr. McEnery.

MR. McENERY: I’m, Mr. Chairman, would be

happy to be sworn in. As a matter of fact, I’d

appreciate if you would swear me in.

MR. SIGNORINO: I wasn’t sworn in.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: If you would prefer it,

.I don’t have a problem with it.

MR. McENERY: I prefer it.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: All right. Do you
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promise to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing

but the truth?

MR. McENERY: I absolut@ly do, Mr. Chairman.

You know, I should follow some pretty good

advice and not speak very long here. But I don’t think

I’m going to, with your approval, Mr. Chairman.

You know, my wife was accosted with subpoena

servers a Couple of days ago. My daughter, not Sarah,

who is here today, is a first grade teacher, had

subpoena servers at her house last week. So I want to

make sure and I’.m very appreciative, as is my family,

of the action tha~ you took this evening. You know,

since I started, as you did, as a citizen commissioner,

I appreciate what you do. And Mr. Moye was very, very

professional in this.

But I think it’s important that we don’t

leave tonight without expressing some feelings and

having a discussion about what we can do here in San

Jose to improve ethics. You know, I only came two

times to City Hall in 18 years since I left, both times

to testify on ethics. I guess it’s kind of .ironic. So

I’m back testifying on ethics.

We are in receipt of these, you know, these

are the manila envelopes. I also received from

Mr. McManis -- and I’m so very sorry he and his staff
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have left. Very, very sorfy that th~ey’ve left, because

I did want to address some things through the Chair to

Mr. McManis and his pay masters. I received three of

these from Mr. McManis. The additional request he’s

making. The additional request of you, of my family.

We’re a family business of mostly

individuals. We have one employee. So just the mere

keeping track of this information is incredibly taxing,

incredibly. My nephew and I don’t argue too much, but

it’s mostly over -- in the last few months all ofthe

record-keeping, each e-mail, each fax, each phone

conversation. How are you doing, Councilmember X? And

how are things going around in San Pedro Square?

Well, we’re working on this-and this guy, we

hope this does well. Is that what a family business

has to.do in San Jose? A question I hope you’ll have

some recommendations on and the council will have some

action on.

MR. JOHN McENERY: What he’s trying to say is

it’s allmy fault.

MR. McENERY: But I-will say an awful lot of"

what Mr. McManis has submitted in very lengthy and

extensive work, should have been put in a plain manila

envelope with no address -- no return address. That’s

exactly what it deserved.
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Again, I thank you for your action here. And

I said to you before that in a number of citywide

elections, I have never come close to experiencing the

level of slander and sleaze and personal threat, if I

can use that word, that my family has in this endeavor.

And I really want a number of people in the city, and

so many of the citizens outside of here that only hear

things through the media, to really understand what has

happened here.

And I’d ask you very respectfully to look at

the higher calling that you have here. You’ve taken an

action, and we could make a few recommendations and

move on from that. And Mr. Chairman and Commissioners,

we should not do that. We should not do that. We

should find out the truth of this eplsode. We should

find out exactly -- exactly when a commission that was

pun in place to take away some dark clouds over San

Jose politics, it is misused and attempted to be

channeled in such a devious way, there are things that

should still come out.

And I feel so bad that Mr. McManis is not

sitting-there, because I believe him to be a coward and

a mercenary. And that should come- out fully.

Now, this was not inexpensive. And I -- I

have seen a lot of hypocrisy in my time, as everybody
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involved in politics or everybody who watches the

evening news understand. Never have I seen an attempt

to gut this Commission as the July ’07 ordinance -- the

July ’07 lawsuit by Mr. McManis and an individual named

Ted Smith. An obviously very wealthy individual that

can spend two years of Mr. McManis and his staff at

$650.. This is a very, very interesting lawsuit to gut

the ordinance that you sit under. Yet Mr. McManis can

file a complaint for a John Doe and drag my family

through this situation using the very parts he wants to

gut.

I’ve seen hypocrisy, Commissioners, but this

is hypocrisy on steroids, and it’s what people despise

about politics. And these types of attempts.

I had more things to say, but, you know, I’m

just not as enthused about it without him sitting here,

because he deserves to hear a lot. Because this

mercenary enterprise is hurting San Jose, hurting

individuals and really making a farse out of good

people’s attempts to makeSan Jose a better place.

You know, I don’t think Mr. McManis and

Mr. John Doe andthe rest of these people spe~d much

time worrying about how~we keep libraries open in San

Jose. They go back to their homes at night in

communities that don’:t have as many problems as we do.
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But when the final cost of this -- and that should be

asked by you and by the council. Thefinal cost of

this is assessed, I’m sure it will be well over

$i00,000. The cost of a police officer, a librarian,

it’s a disgrace. And it’s. a disgrace that should not

go unchallenged. You know, the truth -- the truth is

what should happenout of this.                 ~

I said twice I wasn’t happy to be the canary

in the mine shaft, but. let’s make something good come

out of this. And what can come out of this Is your

strong recommendations to the council to determine who

was behind this charade. Who are"the people who can

spend hundreds of thousands of dollars to conduct this

type of a charade making s farse out of the good

efforts of people to have ethics and better government

in San Jose.

There are some very special money interest in

this city, very special money interest that ought :o

have the curtain drawn back on them. And I really hope

with your help and the recommendations of the City

Council that you’ll begln to set these things rlght.

And, again, I appreciate what you’ve done

here this evening. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD:

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

I have a question.

Yes.
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COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: I was not aware until

I guess I got the attachment to the letter of 4-29

about the Nora Campos memo on -- within 24 hours of the

complaint being mailed to everybody.

MR. McENERY: YOU mean the one that asked for

a separate investigator to be set up?

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Yes. But as I read

this, it bothered my because, unless she was a psychic,

I don’t know how she could have in that short order

have been able to enunciate all of the details of an

allegation that was about an inch thick binder within

24 hours.

MR. McENERY: She was a pretty quick reader,

wasn’t she?

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: She was a speed

reader. And that really bothered me. And as I read

the letter of April 29th, particularly on the second

page, you reference the resolution 72547F9, which it

talks about a public official disclosing information.

And the question I had to you-is: Am I

reading this correctly or effectively is this a formal

request for inquiry as zo Nora Campos as far as her

participation in divulging city --

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I think that’s more a

question for our legal counsel than it is for
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Mr. McEnery.

MR. McENERY: Mr. Shepard, I would jus~ say

that any city official -- the city clerk is not allowed

to divulge what this complaint is. Again, it goes to

the heart of my commenzs. My comments were, any

complaint -- they have a right to investigate me.

In a strange way I feel a little flattered

that somebody thought I was very powerful, again, from

an 18-year-old newspaper article. I’m very interested.

But I’m not very powerful anymore. But ~I’m very

interested now in making sure that the truth come out.

Remember,~ this -- our hearing at the council,

small busfness project, a very important project that

has been damaged considerably by this -- please don’t

forget that item. Our hearing was December 9th at the

council. Mr. McManis, who had all his public records

request long~bef0re filed this on December 8th. These

slanders and things went out on December 8th. I would

imagine the city could find out from these bar codes

a~d things exactly where they went.

Ms. Campos was talking to the press within 24

hours and demanding a separate investigation. You

know, again, I’ll just conclude, Mr. Shepherd,

everybody in this room knows exactly what was happening

here. But people out there in San Jose, the citizens
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1 of San Jose ~hat are 3ust trying to work and get their

2 kids to school don’t understand and they should.

3 COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Right. Maybe the

4 question I asked -- I shouldn’t have asked you this

question. I should have directed --

MR. McENERY: I liked answering it.

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: I shouldhave directed

it to us, in effect, because one of the concerns that I

would have if we leave this -- and then of course our

1 next meeting is our next meeting and we go on and do

1 the anonymous subcommittee work and things of that

1 nature. What would it take to continue this discussion

1 to pursue the issue that we’ve just been talking about?

14 Does it take another resolution? Does it take a motion~

15 to ask Mr. Moye to further investigate the matter? ~f

16 it is, I’d be of a mind to make a motion that that’s

17 exactly what should be done.

18 CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Well, I’m thinking that

19 , that -- you are one of the two members of the

20 subcommittee, you and Commissioner Cosgrove. I think

21 anything that’s related to this is on your plate~ So I~

22 think one of the ways to do it is to come back after

23 you’ve done some work, come back to the full Commission

24 meeting and we’ll have a full-blown discussion on all

25 of this, and then we’ll proceed.from there.
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MS. HERRICK: What I was going to say,

āctually, is that the resolution -- the regulations

that are in the resolution do permit individual

commlssioners to file complaints. So it’s -- the

complaint process doesn’t need to be precipitated by

somebody else. An individual commissioner can

essentially make a complaint that would then trigger

the investigation.

COMMISSIONER SHEPARD: Okay. .Just for the

record, I agree with the Chairman that we should

complete the anonymous subcommittee work. But~ I

personally will come back .on this issue, because I

don’t think this issue should just be let to die.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. Thank you.

I saw a hand there. Mr, Mertens.

MR. MERTENS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My name

is Tom Mertens. I was on this commission for nine

years and chaired for three years, and have followed

this with something a lot less than amusement. In

fact, anger most of the time.

And we discussed how this commission

basically was being used and abused like this for many

years.~ And I was really disappointed that we went this

long as the public -- or public went this long without

having it resolved. And maybe revisiting this case and
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determining if there is any recourse for the public

that the Commission should look into.

Resolution 72547 already requires that no

information being disclosed to any person other than

the city clerk, attorney and respondent and related

entities. I disagree with Mr. Moye, with whom I have a

lot of respect. But it certainly applies to any city

employee, that I think is probably pretty clear.

So there should be serious consequences for

any source in an organization breaching the rules of

disclosure. Beginning with the rejection of the

complaint and followed by action against the person or

group behind the complaint. And special attention

should be glven to anyone in the public trust, such as

an elected official who- violanes the law.

CHAI~RMAN de FUNIAK: Okay. Subcommittee

members, you of ccurse are able to speak with anybody

you would like as you’re pursuing all of this. So both

Tom Mertens and Alex Stuart, I’m sure, would be

available to discuss this issue with you. I know they

both have, as you just saw, some very strong feelings

on the issue. And if they can offer assistance, I’m

sure they will.

Mr. Stuart.

MR. STUART: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’d. like
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to make some points about that. I’d like to ask you to

take one more action tonight. And I know that you feel

strongly about going to a subcommittee. And sometimes

going to a subcommittee is a good idea because it gives

opportunity to really flush out some ideas. But

sometimes leaving something, adjourning a meeting

before you finish what really needs to be done can have

more damage.

A resolution starts off with a statement that

this is to ensure -- these rules you have -- are to

ensure that all interested parties. That’s not just

city employees, that’s you, .the evaluator, the

respondent and the people who filed complaints. Are

apprised of and understand the procedures by which--

and ~his is really critical -~- a fair hearing will be

conducted.

It then goes on to talk about how these

procedures are promulgated in order to ensure fair,

just and timely resolution of complaints. And to

eliminate any improper influence in investigation and

determination.

And I submit to you, that’s why rule F9 is

there. That rule doesn’t say it applies only to city

employees. It says, "Thou shall not publish this

complaint." Very simple. Shall not be disclosed to
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any person. That means that the complainant can’t~

publish it. And that’s the problem.

And I agree with everything Mr. Moye did. If

what he saw in a vacuum was simply an anonymous

complaint that respected your rules. That resected our

rules. They’re about us and our right to make sure

that this process is conducted fairly and appropriately

and justly.

And that complaint was fine if it was filed

and the rules were respected. It’s wrong, and you can

find it’s wron~g. My gosh, 90 percent of what comes

before you you find is wrong. It has no merit.

But they didn’t respect the process and they

published it. And that’s where the harm came in Five

months Tom McEnery and his family are sitting here

waiting for justice to he done. And what does the

complainan~ do? Keeps piling on new ones. There’s no

rule in here that says he can pile on a new one to drag

out a complaint. But the problem is, because it’s all

in the public domain, it drags the process out.

And I know Mike Moye. He works very, very

diligently.

I want to tell ~you a story. I want to tell

you about somebody who was Mayor way before Tom

McEnery. Norm Mineta. He was mayor in 1971. He
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served for four years. And then went on to 20 years in

congress, and then he~ became Secretary of Commerce and

Secretary of Transportation.

He ran at a time when you didn’t exist.

There were no rules. No one can file complaints that

w~re signed by somebody~. No one can file complaints

anonymously and publish them.

But imagine if they could. And imagine if it

was timed exquisitely like this one, One day before a

critical hearing, maybe a week before an election.

When Norm Mineta couldn’t raise any money to defend

himself. And no matter how diligently the evaluator

worked, he couldn’t get a finding to you, a report to

you that’exonerated him before election day. And

imagine that gentleman had his public career squelched

before it ever got off the ground.

We’ve had people exonerated by this

commission, Ed Voss, defeated by someone named Terry

Gregory, who had to resign in disgrace simply because a

complaint was brought before the commission and as to

Ed Voss not found to have any merit.

You’re being tested, we are being tested, and

you are the trustees of fairness. And I submit to you

what you need to do is take that rule F9 and say, it

was violated.    It was wrong. They didn’t respect our
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process, and add one more line to your resolution on

~dismissa~. We are dismissing this complaint because

the complainant refused to abide by our rules. And

then this big piece of paper that you have been given

about please go subpoena people and everything.else

becomes entirely moot. You den’t have to do anything

any more because they disrespected your rules. How can

they accuse you of not playing by the rules when they

won’t play by the rules themselves.

The city has a right, by the way, to find out

what happened here, because you can’t put the

toothpaste back in the tube. Five months of the harm

that has happened to Tom McEnery and his family can’t

be undone simply by it’s been dismissed.

You can make a statement with people in the

future about what you’re going to do, and I think

that’s great. I urge you, conduct an investigation to

find out why this happened. I don’t think you can do

it by filing a complaint, because I don’t know that it

is necessarily a violation of the ethics ordinance.

But it is a violation of your rules, and I think

inherently you have a right to investigate anyone who

violated your rules. And you can do it yourselves or

you can appoint someone to do it. I urge you to

consult with the city ~attorney as to how to do that.

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09                      52

Advantage ~~ Reporting

Services, LLC



1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

2O

21

22

23

24

25

And the last’ thing is something that we

talked about when I was on the Commission awhile back,

because we saw abuse when~ I was there. And that is,

ask the City Council for a contempt power. So that

when somebody comes before you and violates your rules,

you have the ability to take action against them by

finding that they violated your rules. Hold them in

contempt, and make sure you impose an appropriate

penalty. It won’t give back the harm that’s ~appened

to Tom and to John and to the r~st of their family

members, but at least it will bring back a semblance of

fairness and justice to this process. And that’s what

it’s all about. Fairness and justice for the people

who are charged with violating rules that are

ultimately found to be innocent of these violations.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Can we have that --

MS. HERRICK: That’s fine. How do you want

to -- if you know what it is that you want to say. Do

you care to repeat yourself, Mr. Stuart?

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: What I just asked -- one

.of the.things we agreed upon as the Commission empower

the Chair to do is to meet with the city attorney and

to craft a letter that tells what we did tonight. And

the question I just asked was: Can we put what you

just said about.violating F9 in that letter? And I
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think I heard a yes. The question to you is: Can you

repeat that?

MR. STUART: I would urge you to include as a

grounds for your dismissal that rule F9 was violated by

the publication of the complaint before the evaluator’s

report was made public.

MS. HERRICK: I understand what the request

is, and we’ll discuss this, because I do think that we

need to analyze -- I mean, we have looked at F9 and

have some concerns about applying-it to people outside

of the city because of some First Amendment rights.

But assuming, that that works its way through, we can

work on that.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK:

other comments from the public?

Okay. Do we have any

What I will -- yes.

MR. REILLY: Terry Reilly. I had the

pleasur.e to serve with Alex here on this board, was a

former Chair. And as Alex did state, we spent-a lot of

time talking about how the Commission can be abused in

the political process.

At one point in time we made a suggestion

that the board be dissolved as it was constituted and

have the FPPC do the investigation. In fact, at one

point in time the FPPC came out and made a ruling

against some people in San Jose.    It came to the board,
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and the board would not do a sort of a double jeopardy

sort of thing. We do not put a penalty on them seeing

how they~were already fined by the FPPC.

But how many times do you see someone come

here in San Jose running around saying, I filed

something with the FPPC? It just doesn"t happen. But

in 1997, if they would have taken our advice and

eliminated the~ board, handed those things to the FPPC,

the board wouldn’t have been used as it has been in so

many years.

As Alex stated, about 90 percent of the

things that come in front of the board are things like,

This businessman gave some funds and this businessman~

gave some funds and another business gave funds ~but he

owns 51 percent. They spend a lot of time upstairs

doing little things to try to catch things. But we

find that the board is being used in this sort of     ~

manner.

So I would like for you to take a look at --

you know, how you can get rid of that. How you can

change that?

I’d like to ask something for Alex’

consideration on the letter, but when you make this

dismissa!, if you would put something in particular why

the dismissal was, such as no violation occurred based
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on a nonfactual complaint or based on a frivolous

complaint as for the reason of the dismissall rather

than just. that those were dismissed. I think that

carries a little bit more weight, and you guys should

consider that.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: Thank you.

MR~ McENERY: Mr. Chairman, just a real

quickie, and itwill be a quickie.

I don’t want lost in the discusslon finding

out exactly how much this process -- this evaluation or

investigat@on, as everybody refers to it as, how much

did it cost the ’city in actual time -- and, again, I

just want to say again what a professional job Mr. Moye

did. How much Hanson Bridgett cost, how much

redevelopment, city, staff, time, because I believe the

pay masters of Mr. McManis should reimburse the city

for that. I don’t think that’s unreasonable, and I

think that would show the seriousness -- the

seriousness of so misusing this commission.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: I’m not sure that aspect

of it is Commission business. I don’t disagree --

MR. McENERY: Please make it a recommendation

to the council, please.

CHAIRMAN de’ FUNIAK: You know, I think

getting a dollar amount probably can happen. But not
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disagreeing with what you’re saylng or what -- with

anything I’ve heard here tonight. What we need to be

cautious of is what the’ Commission may and may not do.

MR. McENERY: I’m just saying, Mr. Chair,

again, the only person -- the person making the biggest

money per hour here left earliest. And I’m sure his

billing to John Doe won’t reflect that. But the

citizens of san Jose deserve to be reimbursed for this~

vendetta and charade. And then you’ll have some real

teeth behind the efforts to stop this type of thing in

the future.

-And I understand it can only be ~a

recommendation perhaps to the council, but make it.

Because there are good people on’that council that do

not appreciate this type of a personal an~ political

vendetta. He’s making money, our absent individual.

CHAIRHAN de FUNIAK: And of course you’re

well aware the Commission doesn’t make anything.

MR. HcENERY: Nobody here is making anything

except for the guy that left.

CHAIRMAN de FUNIAK: What I will end with,

coming from me, and I think I speak for the Commission

in this, none of us --none of the four of us, and one

absent member I know I can. speak for also, we’re not

happy about what happened. We’renbt happy that our
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own rules were used against us.

What I can do is give you my word that we

will do everything within our power to address all of

these issues, and make any recommendations that we

think -- that we think we have to with City Council. I

think that -- that certainly is somethingthat I can

leave with all of you for tonight.

Do we have anything else? In that~case,

thank you very much~ Our next scheduled meeting is May

13th.. And anyways, thank you all very much.

(At 6:47 p.m. the meeting concluded.
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I, .NOELIA, ESPINOLA, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing special meeting was taken

down by me in shorthand at the time and place therein

named, and thereafter reduced to computerized

transcription under my direction.

And I hereby certify the foregoing transcript

is a full, true and correct transcript of my shorthand

notes so taken.

I further certify that I am nQt interested in

the outcome of this special meeting.

NOELIA ESP~, CSR #8060

SAN JOSE ELECTIONS COMMISSION 4/30/09                      59

Advantage ~~ Reporting

Services, LLC


